
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA
December 20, 2016

1. 4:30 p.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: December 13, 2016 Minutes and Summary Minutes

2. 4:31 p.m. Kathy Brockway,  P&Z Administrator (2 min) 
a. Request for Action-2 Conditional Use Permits

3. 4:33 p.m. Human Resources (2 min)

4. 4:35 p.m. Claims (5 min)

5. 4:40 p.m. Human Services (35 min)

6. 5:15 p.m. Chuck Retka (5 min)
a. RE: Snowmobile Trails

7. 5:20 p.m. Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health

8. 5:30 p.m. Brett Mason (5 min)
a. RE: Task Force JPA

9. 5:35 p.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator / Engineer
a. RE: Commissioner Salary and Per Diem
b. RE: 2017 AMC Appointments
c. RE: Elected Officials Salaries
d. RE: Road & Bridge Budget Adjustments
e.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 1 / 95



10. 5:45 p.m. Jim McMillen (5 min)
a. RE: Permit Parking - West County Parking Lot

11. 5:50 p.m. 2017 Fee Changes Public Hearing (10 min)

12. 6:00 p.m. 2017 Levy - Budget Public Hearing

13. 6:15 p.m. Approve 2017 Levy

14. 6:20 p.m. Approve 2017 Budget

15. 6:30 p.m. Al Christensen (15 min)
a. 2016 Tri County Update

16. 6:45 p.m. Amy Beatty, Environmental Programs Specialist
a. 2017 Recycling Facility Agreement Between Le Sueur County and City of Le 

Center

17. Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 2 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 1

4:30 p.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: December 13, 2016 Minutes and Summary Minutes

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 3 / 95



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
December 13, 2016

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, December 13, 
2016 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
John King, Dave Gliszinski, Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel and Joe Connolly. Darrell Pettis and 
Brent Christian were also present. 

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the agenda.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the consent agenda:

●Approved the November 22, 2016 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
●Approved the November 2016 Transfers: 
#1625 Transfer 2,728.00 from Agency to Revenue (November landshark)
#1626 Transfer 2,792.00 from Human Services to Revenue (A87 qtr ending 9-30-16)
#1627 Transfer 13,250.68 from Revenue to Road & Bridge (Law Enf fuel—August, 
September & October)

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the following cases 
and claims were approved:                                                                                                 
       Soc Serv:              $ 152,487.61
       Financial:             $   36,000.65

Dean Otto appeared before the Board to discuss the Lake Washington trails.

The Board consensus was to move forward with establishing a committee through the Parks 
Department to develop a trail system plan.

Josh Mankowski appeared before the Board with one item for approval.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Board Chair and County Administrator to sign a Cannon River 1W1P 
Memorandum of Agreement.

Miranda Rosa, Drug Court Coordinator appeared before the Board with two items for approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Board Chair to sign a contract for services with Wornson, Goggins, Morris & 
Berver, PC.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
renewal lease agreement contract for the Le Sueur County Drug Court.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 4 / 95



Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources Director appeared before the Board with several items 
for discussion and approval. 

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to grant regular status to Erin Linscheid, full time Recreational Therapist in 
Human Services, effective December 13, 2016.  Erin has completed the six-month probationary 
period.   

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to grant regular status to Danielle Blaschko, full time Accounting/License 
Clerk in the Auditor-Treasurer’s Office, effective November 25, 2016.  Dani has completed the 
six-month probationary period.  

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to accept the resignation from Anthony Larson, part time Correctional 
Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, effective December 19, 2016.  

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to advertise for three part time Correctional Officer/Dispatchers in the 
Sheriff’s Office, as a Grade 6, Step 1 at $17.50 per hour. 

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
recommendation to hire Michael Thelemann as a full time Deputy Sheriff in the Sheriff’s Office, 
as a Grade 10, Step 6 at $27.06 per hour, effective January 9, 2017.
 
On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Network Administrator in the 
Information Technology Department, as a Grade 10, Step 1 at $22.09 per hour. 

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
recommendation approve and sign to renew the Le Sueur County Telecommute Agreement with 
Miranda Rosa, part time Drug Court Coordinator, effective January 15, 2017 to January 15, 
2018.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the recommendation to approve the changes to the Le Sueur County Personnel Policy.  

Kathy Brockway appeared before the Board with one item for approval.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
set a public hearing date for January 17th, 2017 at 11:00 a.m. to take public comment on 
proposed P&Z Committee changes.

Darrell Pettis, Administrator appeared before the Board with several items for discussion and 
approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 5 / 95



On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the final payment to S.M. Hentges for SAP 40-603-025 in the amount of $139,658.92.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
install a 4-way stop with flashing STOP signs at the CSAH 29 and Tenth Avenue intersection 
and to leave the speed limit at 55 mph. 

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
start paying the utilities for the County owned 4H Building.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the proposal from American Engineering Testing, Inc. in the amount of $8,500 for geotechnical 
services for the West Jefferson project.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the following claims 
were approved for payment:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

43307 A’Viands $    8,388.04
43309 Advanced Correctional Healthcare Inc. $    2,297.99
43317 APG Media of Southern MN LLC $    7,293.20
43325 Bolton & Menk Inc. $  15,059.50
43329 Cargill Inc. $  47,658.68
43334 Christin, Keogh, Moran & King $    2,524.40
43338 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $  12,300.32
43339 CPS Technology Solutions $    2,200.00
43347 Election Systems & Software Inc. $    9,576.52
43359 Genesis $    5,299.75
43367 Gregg Kocina Construction LLC $  11,502.27
43378 I & S Group Inc. $    2,100.00
43381 ITsavvy LLC $    2,434.00
43383 Johnson Aggregates $    2,101.06
43391 Kris Engineering Inc. $  16,342.50
43394 Lake Region Hydroseeding LLC $    2,160.00
43401 Richard Lea $    3,375.00
43403 Little Falls Machine Inc. $    2,384.45
43410 Minn St Admin ITG Telecom $    5,480.00
43412 MN Counties Computers Coop $  34,832.98
43425 Nielsen Blacktopping $  25,503.80
43433 Paragon Printing & Mailing Inc. $  10,319.78
43451 S.E.H. Inc. $  66,348.43
43452 Selly Excavating Inc. $  21,441.40
43455 SHI International Corp. $  36,520.00
43457 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $    7,574.12
43463 Suel Printing Co. $    4,030.50

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 6 / 95



43466 Technical Solutions of Madison Lake Inc. $    2,551.55
43476 Traxler Construction Inc. $  15,035.12
43488 Waterford Oil Co. Inc. $  11,059.48
43489 Wenck Associates Inc. $    6,148.68
43494 Wondra Automotive Inc $    9,037.23
43497 Ziegler Inc. $    2,584.03
43498 Zimmerman Construction $  32,746.22

159 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  56,587.77  
  34 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $446,211.00 
193 Total all claims paid: $502,798.77

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, December 20, 2016 at 4:30 p.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 7 / 95



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, December 13, 2016
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us.
●Approved the agenda. (Connolly-Wetzel)
●Approved the consent agenda. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●The following cases and claims were approved: Soc Serv: $ 152,487.61and Financial: $ 36,000.65 
(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●Approved a Cannon River 1W1P Memorandum of Agreement. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Approved a contract for services with Wornson, Goggins, Morris & Berver, PC. (Gliszinski-Connolly)
●Approved the renewal lease agreement contract for the Le Sueur County Drug Court. (Rohlfing-Wetzel)
●Approved to grant regular status to Erin Linscheid in Human Services. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)   
●Approved to grant regular status to Danielle Blaschko in the Auditor-Treasurer’s Office. (Connolly-
Rohlfing)  
●Approved to accept the resignation from Anthony Larson in the Sheriff’s Office. (Wetzel-Gliszinski) 
●Approved to advertise for three part time Correctional Officer/Dispatchers in the Sheriff’s Office. 
(Connolly-Rohlfing)
●Approved to hire Michael Thelemann in the Sheriff’s Office. (Wetzel-Rohlfing)
●Approved to post and advertise for a full time Network Administrator in the Information Technology 
Department. (Gliszinski-Connolly)
●Approved to renew the Le Sueur County Telecommute Agreement with Miranda Rosa. (Rohlfing-
Wetzel)
●Approved changes to the Le Sueur County Personnel Policy. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski) 
●Approved to set a public hearing date for January 17th, 2017 at 11:00 a.m. on proposed P&Z Committee 
changes. (Wetzel-Rohlfing)
●Approved the final payment to S.M. Hentges for SAP 40-603-025. (Connolly-Wetzel)
●Approved to install a 4-way stop with flashing STOP signs at the CSAH 29 and Tenth Avenue 
intersection and to leave the speed limit at 55 mph. (Gliszinski-Wetzel) 
●Approved to start paying the utilities for the County owned 4H Building. (Rohlfing-Wetzel)
●Approved the proposal from American Engineering Testing, Inc. for geotechnical services for the West 
Jefferson project. (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●The following claims were approved for payment: (Wetzel-Connolly)
Warrant # Vendor Name Amount
43307 A’Viands $    8,388.04
43309 Advanced Correctional Healthcare Inc. $    2,297.99
43317 APG Media of Southern MN LLC $    7,293.20
43325 Bolton & Menk Inc. $  15,059.50
43329 Cargill Inc. $  47,658.68
43334 Christin, Keogh, Moran & King $    2,524.40
43338 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $  12,300.32
43339 CPS Technology Solutions $    2,200.00
43347 Election Systems & Software Inc. $    9,576.52
43359 Genesis $    5,299.75
43367 Gregg Kocina Construction LLC $  11,502.27
43378 I & S Group Inc. $    2,100.00
43381 ITsavvy LLC $    2,434.00
43383 Johnson Aggregates $    2,101.06
43391 Kris Engineering Inc. $  16,342.50
43394 Lake Region Hydroseeding LLC $    2,160.00
43401 Richard Lea $    3,375.00
43403 Little Falls Machine Inc. $    2,384.45

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 8 / 95

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


43410 Minn St Admin ITG Telecom $    5,480.00
43412 MN Counties Computers Coop $  34,832.98
43425 Nielsen Blacktopping $  25,503.80
43433 Paragon Printing & Mailing Inc. $  10,319.78
43451 S.E.H. Inc. $  66,348.43
43452 Selly Excavating Inc. $  21,441.40
43455 SHI International Corp. $  36,520.00
43457 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $    7,574.12
43463 Suel Printing Co. $    4,030.50
43466 Technical Solutions of Madison Lake Inc. $    2,551.55
43476 Traxler Construction Inc. $  15,035.12
43488 Waterford Oil Co. Inc. $  11,059.48
43489 Wenck Associates Inc. $    6,148.68
43494 Wondra Automotive Inc $    9,037.23
43497 Ziegler Inc. $    2,584.03
43498 Zimmerman Construction $  32,746.22
159 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  56,587.77  
  34 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $446,211.00 
193 Total all claims paid: $502,798.77
●Adjourned until Tuesday, December 20, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. (Connolly-Wetzel)
ATTEST:  Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 9 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 2

4:31 p.m. Kathy Brockway,  P&Z Administrator (2 min) 

Request for Action-2 Conditional Use Permits

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway - Environmental and P & Z Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 10 / 95



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
December 8, 2016

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don,Reak, Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley 
Katzenmeyer, Steve Olson, Doug Krenik, Al Gehrke

MEMBERS ABSENT: Betty Bruzek, Pam Tietz

OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Brockway, Commissioner Connolly. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1: ROSS & RUTH HEILMAN, CLEVELAND, MN, (APPLICANTOWNER):  Request 
that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of approximately 
43 cubic yards of material within the shore impact zone for a rip rap project in a Recreational Residential 
“RR” District, on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Jefferson. Property is located in 
Government Lot 5, Section 2, Washington Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation. Ross and Ruth Heilman were present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notified through the application process, no comments.     DNR:  Granted a DNR permit 
received in order to do work below the ordinary high water level.     LETTERS:  Joshua Mankowski, LSC 
Resource Specialist, see file.

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none.

Discussion was held regarding: applicants tried to correct the erosion problem with other alternatives but 
they failed, only option left is to place rip rap along the shoreline, loss of trees on the property due to the 
erosion problem, would like to complete the project during the winter, will match up with the current rip 
rap along the property, variance for more than 200’ of rip rap was granted in October, buffer along 
shoreline.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area. Agreed

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. Agreed

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and 
loading space to serve the proposed use. Not applicable.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
Agreed

Motion was made by Don Reak to approve the application as presented with the condition that they abide 
the condition that they maintain the 7’ no-mow buffer to help reduce the possibility of future erosion issues. 
Seconded by Doug Krenik. Motion approved. Motion carried.

ITEM #2: R & C LOGISTICS LLC, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); DAVID & 
MEGAN CULVER, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 11 / 95



Permit to allow the applicant to establish and operate a Contractor Company along with shop and yard in an 
Agriculture “A” District. Property is located in the NE 1/4, Section 22, Lanesburgh Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation. David Culver was present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notified through the application process, no comments. DNR: N/A
LETTERS:  None

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Tim Tupy, landowner, questioned road tonnage. Trailers will be empty when 
coming onto the site.

Discussion was held regarding: Applicants propose to operate the business as R & C Logistics LLC. Main 
hub, dispatch, and offices located out of Boise, Idaho. The site consists of 8 acres and will serve as the drop 
off/storage and maintenance hub of the empty tractor/trailers. The business is a refrigerated transportation 
company that owns 4 semi-tractors. They haul refrigerated goods in the Midwest states area. When the 
occasional vehicle is not over the road, the vehicle will be parked at this location. Routine maintenance of 
the vehicles is done every 5-6 weeks. Routine maintenance will be performed at the site consisting of 
changing oil/tires. The oil will be collected in a waste oil container and taken to Lakes Sanitation in New 
Prague for the proper disposal. Any major repairs will be completed by an ASE Certified Repair Shop. 
Minimal day to day traffic at the site. 4 drivers of the tractor/trailers will park their personal vehicles on 
site. If future expansion were necessary applicant would need to locate elsewhere. Access approved by 
County Highway Department off County Road 3, 9 ton road, 7 ton road.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs 
property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. Agreed

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. Agreed

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use. Agreed

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, 
dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted 
signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will 
result. Agreed

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application as requested. Seconded by Don Rynda. 
Motion approved. Motion carried.

Motion was made by Chuck Retka to approve the minutes with changes from the November 10, 2016 
meeting. Seconded by Al Gehrke. Motion approved. Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Don Reak. Seconded by Shirley Katzenmeyer. Motion approved. Motion 
carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,
Kathy Brockway
for Shirley Katzenmeyer.

Tape of meeting is on file in theLe Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 12 / 95



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
December 20,2016

TO: LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

FROM: LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

SUBJECT: “REQUEST FOR ACTION”

The Planning Commission recommends your action on the following items:

ITEM #1: ROSS & RUTH HEILMAN, CLEVELAND, MN, (APPLICANTOWNER):  Request 
that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of approximately 
43 cubic yards of material within the shore impact zone for a rip rap project in a Recreational Residential 
“RR” District, on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Jefferson. Property is located in 
Government Lot 5, Section 2, Washington Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application with the following condition:

 That a 7’ no-mow buffer is maintained to help reduce the possibility of future erosion issues.

ITEM #2: R & C LOGISTICS LLC, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); DAVID & 
MEGAN CULVER, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the applicant to establish and operate a Contractor Company along with shop and yard in an 
Agriculture “A” District. Property is located in the NE 1/4, Section 22, Lanesburgh Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application as requested.

ACTION: ITEM #1:___________________________

ITEM #2:___________________________

DATE:_______________________________________________

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE:______________________________

1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 13 / 95



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,    ROSS & RUTH HEILMAN, CLEVELAND, MN, (APPLICANTOWNER): has 
applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of approximately 43 cubic 
yards of material within the shore impact zone for a rip rap project in a Recreational Residential “RR” 
District, on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Jefferson. Property is located in Government Lot 
5, Section 2, Washington Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  December 
8, 2016 in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to and 
as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the 
Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends approval of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. With the imposition of the condition, the conditional use will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. With the imposition of the condition, the establishment of the conditional use will not impede 
the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for 
uses predominant in the area.

3. With the imposition of the condition, adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other 
facilities are being provided.

4. With the imposition of the condition, adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control 
offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a 
nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance 
to neighboring properties will result.

5. With the imposition of the condition, the Conditional Use Permit is consistent with and 
supported by the statement of purposes, policies, goals and objectives in the Ordinance.

6. With the imposition of the condition, the Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

WHEREAS, On  December 20, 2016 at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners APPROVED/DENIED the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by ROSS & 
RUTH HEILMAN, CLEVELAND, MN, (APPLICANTOWNER).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
December 20, 2016 Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and 
general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1. With the imposition of the condition, the conditional use will not be injurious to the use 
and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already 
permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate 
vicinity. 

2. With the imposition of the condition, the establishment of the conditional use will not 
impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant 
property for uses predominant in the area.

3. With the imposition of the condition, adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and other 
facilities are being provided.

4. With the imposition of the condition, adequate measures will be taken to prevent and 

2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 14 / 95



control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will 
constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that 
no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

5. With the imposition of the condition, the Conditional Use Permit is consistent with and 
supported by the statement of purposes, policies, goals, and objectives in the Ordinance.

6. With the imposition of the condition, the Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 
approximately 43 cubic yards of material within the shore impact zone for a rip rap project in a 
Recreational Residential “RR” District, on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Jefferson. 
Property is located in Government Lot 5, Section 2, Washington Township.  

ATTEST:

John King, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

3

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 15 / 95



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,    R & C LOGISTICS LLC, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); DAVID & MEGAN 
CULVER, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER): has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant to establish and operate a Contractor Company along with shop and yard in an Agriculture “A” 
District. Property is located in the NE 1/4, Section 22, Lanesburgh Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  December 
8, 2016 in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties pertaining to and 
as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le 
Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends approved of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in 
the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 
space to serve the proposed use.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted 
signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties 
will result.

6. The Conditional Use Permit consistent with and supported by the statement of purposes, 
policies, goals and objectives in the Ordinance.

7. The Conditional Use Permit consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

WHEREAS, On  December 20, 2016, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners APPROVED/DENIED the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by R & C 
LOGISTICS LLC, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); DAVID & MEGAN CULVER, NEW 
PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER).

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
December 20, 2016 Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and 
general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in 
the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 

4

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 16 / 95



space to serve the proposed use.

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted 
signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties 
will result.

6. The Conditional Use Permit consistent with and supported by the statement of purposes, 
policies, goals and objectives in the Ordinance.

7. The Conditional Use Permit consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to establish and operate a 
Contractor Company along with shop and yard in an Agriculture “A” District. Property is located in the NE 
1/4, Section 22, Lanesburgh Township,  is APPROVED/DENIED. 

ATTEST:

John King, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

5

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 17 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 3

4:33 p.m. Human Resources (2 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 18 / 95



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEMS

December 20, 2016

Recommendation to adopt the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Per Diem Policy.  

Recommendation to change the meal reimbursement policy to the following:     

Reimbursement Amounts
The maximum reimbursement per meal, with receipts, including tax, shall be:  
Standard Maximum Rate:
Breakfast $10.00    9.00
Lunch $15.00  11.00
Dinner $25.00  16.00

Add to policy: The reimbursement for meals, when traveling out of state, will be reimbursed to 
a maximum of $75.00 per day, with receipts, including tax.

Recommendation to accept the resignation from Makayla Schmitz, full time Public Health 
Nurse in Public Health, effective December 15, 2016.  

Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Public Health Nurse in Public Health, as 
a Grade 11, Step 1 at $23.42 per hour.  

88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607

Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Human Resources

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 19 / 95



Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Per Diem Policy

Each Le Sueur County Commissioner receives a salary and is also eligible to receive per diem reimbursement for certain 
activities they perform. The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners annually determines per diem rates for performance of 
duties as determined by this policy. The following policy identifies those activities eligible for per diems, as well as those 
activities that do not qualify for per diem reimbursement. 

Generally, those items that are eligible for per diem reimbursement are Commissioner service on any board, committee, or 
commission of county government, including committees of the Board. The list of committees, boards and other public bodies 
for which Board members will be compensated will be approved on an annual basis by the Board of Commissioners. The Board 
may, by resolution, add to or subtract from the list at any time.  This includes but is not limited to the following: 

  Attendance at all board and committee appointments set at the organizational meeting of the Board. Other 
committee or board assignments made by the Board of Commissioners that occur at other times during the year. 

 Participation in Metropolitan Inter-County Association (MICA) and Association of Minnesota Counties (AMC) 
committees and subcommittees. 

 This includes workshops and trainings sponsored and/or endorsed by these organizations 
 Participation in National Association of Counties (NACo) committees and workshops. 
 Participation in other activities as directed by the County Board of Commissioners. 
 Attendance at workshops or trainings sponsored and/or endorsed by the State of Minnesota. 

The Board of Commissioners may establish such rules and regulations regarding the business concerns of the County as the 
Board considers necessary and proper. See: MCL 46.11(m); 46.71, Act 156 of 1851, as amended.

County officials are responsible for making and preserving all records “necessary to a full and accurate knowledge of their 
official duties”.  When a per diem is claimed for committee work or activity required by law, the Board of Commissioners shall 
record the date of the work or service and the committee or activity on the electronic timecard program. 

Board or committee minutes serve as documentation to support the per diem payment.  The commissioners’ role in 
performing these activities must be documented in the committee minutes.  The minutes should note the authorization of the 
meeting by the board or committee and the commissioner has reported to the board on the results of the information 
gathering or activity. Mere attendance at a social event(s) does not constitute committee work.  Social activities are not 
qualified as committee work.  Per diem payment cannot be claimed whenever the commissioner meets with a constituent or 
group unless they commissioner acts as an agent for the board or committee in gathering information and is referenced in the 
minutes.   

Mileage is payable for any travel determined by the Board of Commissioners to be “county business.” Mileage is payable at the 
current rate allowed by Internal Revenue Service regulations and may be taxable. Mileage should be submitted to the 
Accounts Payable Department.  

There are specific items that are not eligible for per diem reimbursement which include the following: 
 County Board meetings 
 Board of Appeal and Equalization 
 Canvassing Board 
 Receiving per diem from a Joint powers board 

It is recognized that this policy does not completely address all instances, so any item that does not clearly fit into this policy 
should be brought before the Board of Commissioners for a decision.

Adopted December 20, 2016

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 20 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 4

4:35 p.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 21 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 5

4:40 p.m. Human Services (35 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 22 / 95



Human Services Board Agenda
December 20, 2016 @ 4:35 p.m.

100- INFORMATION/PRESENTATIONS:


200- CHARTS/GRAPHS:

 210- Finance Graphs/Report;
 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
 230- Family Services Graphs-
                    231- Social Services Team 

       232- Child Services Team
                   232.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   232.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 – Advanced Billing Svc, LLC Contract
320 – Aging Services for Communities Contract
330 – Minnesota Valley Action Council Contract
340 – Electronic Data Management System – Child Support
350 - Commissioner’s Warrants
               

                                             

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 23 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 24 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 25 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 26 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 27 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 28 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 29 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 30 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 31 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 32 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 33 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 34 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 35 / 95



 

3210 Fiechtner Dr. S 
Fargo, ND  58103 

T: 800-359-1048 
F: 701-232-4648 

www.iscimaging.com 
 

Date: December 7, 2016  Page 1 of 2 

To:  Kandi Larson, Le Sueur County Human Services 

From:   Wayne Altenbernd 

Date:   December 7, 2016 

Subject:  ApplicationXtender Document Management System for Le Sueur County Human Services 

Le Sueur County Human Services has indicated a desire to implement an Electronic Document Management System to be used 
by the Child Support unit.  Information Systems Corporation is proposing the following to software and hardware products to 
meet this objective. 

 Document Management and Workflow Software 
 
EMC ApplicationXtender is core product of the proposed electronic document management system. ApplicationXtender provides immediate 
access to virtually any type of data file, by integrating data generation, management and access into a single comprehensive solution.  
ApplicationXtender enables access through a universal interface for virtually any type of document by intelligently indexing, organizing and 
storing business information to improve employee productivity and provide a quick return on investment (ROI). 
 
EMC ApplicationXtender Workflow Manager offers advanced capabilities for creating departmental and horizontal solutions to common 
business challenges. With ApplicationXtender Workflow Manager, you can improve business performance and reduce costs within and 
across functional business units. You can also maximize investments in your organization’s current and future IT infrastructure. 
 

 Enhanced Document Capture using Captiva Capture and EMC ApplicationXtender Capture Package 
 
Enhanced document scanning incorporates Captiva Capture and ApplicationXtender Document Capture Package to improve the process 
of document scanning and indexing.  Enhanced document scanning includes the following features and benefits. 

 

Feature Benefit 

Integrated with Minnesota DHS 
Shared Master Index (SMI) 

Improves document index accuracy by getting the most current client information from 
MAXIS, MMIS, PRISM, and SSIS systems 

Automatic Document Seperation Splits documents automatically when a barcode is found on the document page 

Automatic Document Identification Documents can fully indexed by recognizing and reading barcodes contained on selected 
document pages 

Scan Document Once and Index to 
Different Cases 

Allows documents to be scanned once and indexed to multiple client cases  including 
between different systems (i.e. MAXIS to PRISM or PRISM to MAXIS) 

Distributed Document Scanning and 
Indexing 

Different workers can be involved in the document scanning and indexing process to 
distribute the workload among multiple staff to improve document processing productivity 

 

 Document Scanners  

Canon DR-M160II Color Duplex Document Scanner 
Specifications: 

 Recommended Scanning Volume – 7,000 Scans per Day 

 Grey Scale: 8-Bit maximum, 256 levels 

 Color: 24-Bit maximum 

 Built-in 50-sheet capacity automatic document feeder 

 Scan speed – 60 letter size pages per minute @ 200dpi 

 Maximum document size of 8.5” x 14” 

 Minimum document size of 2.0” x 2.1” 

 Scan resolutions of 100 to 600 dpi 

 

 
  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 36 / 95



 

3210 Fiechtner Dr. S 
Fargo, ND  58103 

T: 800-359-1048 
F: 701-232-4648 

www.iscimaging.com 
 

Date: December 7, 2016  Page 2 of 2 

Cost to Implement the Proposed System for Le Sueur County Human Services  
 
For Child Support Unit with Enhanced Document Capture 
 

Product or Service Description Quantity Cost Total cost 

Document Management and Workflow Software 
   

ApplicationXtender Workflow Manager Server Client License 5 $5,500.00  

Captiva Capture Attended Client License 1 $3,500.00  

ApplicationXtender Capture Package 1 $700.00  

Total for Software Licenses   $9,700.00 

Professional Services    

Workflow Business process analysis and development. 1 $4,000.00  

Captiva Capture Software Installation and Training 1 $1,500.00  

Total for Professional Services   $5,500.00 

Annual Maintenance Agreements    

ApplicationXtender Workflow Manager Server Client License 5 $1,320.00  

Captiva Capture Attended Client License 1 $840.00  

ApplicationXtender Capture Package 1 $168.00  

Total for Annual Maintenance Agreements   $2,328.00 

Document Scanners    

Canon DR-M160II Duplex Color Document Scanner 1 $949.00  

Total for Document Scanners   $949.00 

Total* 
 

 $18,479.00 

 
*Note:  Additional costs may be incurred when implementing or expanding ApplicationXtender Workflow Manager.  Additional costs may include, 
but not limited to, purchasing additional ApplicationXtender licenses and Professional Services for business process analysis and workflow 
development.  
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 37 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 6

5:15 p.m. Chuck Retka (5 min)

RE: Snowmobile Trails

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 38 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 7

5:20 p.m. Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 39 / 95



LE SUEUR COUNTY 
PUBLIC HEALTH  

 
88 South Park Avenue 
Le Center, MN 56057 

Phone (507) 357-8246  
 Fax (507) 357-4223 

 
 
Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting 
December 20, 2016 
 
Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health Director 
 
 Agenda:  
 
1) Request approval to purchase cubicle supplies including sit/stand station bases  
 

• Request to spend the remaining $8,700 in the PH equipment budget 
 
• Invoice is in development and would be paid with 2016 funds 
 

 
 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 40 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 8

5:30 p.m. Brett Mason (5 min)

RE: Task Force JPA

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 41 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 42 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 43 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 44 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 45 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 46 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 47 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 48 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 49 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 50 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 51 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 52 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 53 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 54 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 55 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 56 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 9

5:35 p.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator / Engineer

RE: Commissioner Salary and Per Diem

RE: 2017 AMC Appointments

RE: Elected Officials Salaries

RE: Road & Bridge Budget Adjustments

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 57 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 58 / 95



125 Charles Avenue, Saint Paul, MN 55103-2108 | Main Line/Switchboard: 651 -224-3344, Fax: 
651-224-6540 | www.mncounties.org

AMC 2017 POLICY COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

POLICY COMMITTEE DELEGATE
Environment & Natural Resources Policy Committee
General Government Policy Committee
Health & Human Services Policy Committee
Public Safety Policy Committee
Transportation & Infrastructure Policy Committee 

Each county can appoint one commissioner or county official to each of five policy committees. Each county must 
have at least one member appointed to a policy committee. No policy Committee member can be on more than one 
Policy Committee. 

AMC 2017 DELEGATE APPOINTMENTS 
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

ARTICLE 8: ASSOCIATION DELEGATES & DISTRICTS 
Section 1. Association Delegates Each member county shall be entitled to a number of delegates equal to three more than 
the number of persons on the board of county commissioners of the member county. Delegates shall be appointed annually 
by the county board from among the officials and employees of the county. Each delegate so appointed shall be eligible to 
vote at any meeting of the Association or to be elected an officer or director of the Association. The right to vote at any 
meeting of the Association or to hold an office or directorship in the Association shall terminate when such person ceases to 
be a delegate from a member county or the county that delegate represents ceases to be a member of the Association. A 
vacancy in the office of delegate shall be filled by the county board for the unexpired term.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 59 / 95

http://www.mncounties.org


End of the Year Board Action Items:

On motion by                             seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
adopted the following resolution setting the 2017 mileage reimbursement rate:

BE IT RESOLVED: That the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners hereby 
sets the mileage reimbursement for Le Sueur County Employees to be the Federal
IRS mileage at 53.5 cents per mile and 2 cents per mile additional for those Water 
Patrol Officers while pulling a water patrol boat for the year 2017.

On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved the Board 
adopted the 2017 Per Diem Rate:

BE IT RESOLVED: That the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners hereby
sets the 2017 Per Diem at $50.00 per half day and $80.00 per full day, effective
January 1, 2017.

On motion by                             seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
set the 2017 Per Diem Eligible Committees as follows:

2017 PER DIEM ELIGIBLE COMMITTEES

Personnel Policy Committee, Personnel Committee, Scenic Byway Alliance, Family 
Services Collaborative, Labor Management, Historical Society, Union Negotiations, Fair 
Board, PIC, Law Library, Airport Commissions, Extension, MVCOG, Le Sueur/Waseca 
Regional Library, Road & Bridge, Transportation Alliance, Annual Township Meeting, 
Personnel Interviews, all AMC Policy Committees, AMC, NACO, Le Sueur - Waseca 
Community Health Board, Planning & Zoning matters, Tri-County Solid Waste, Cannon 
River Matters,  MSSA, Mental Health Advisory, Immtrack Joint Powers Board, Region 
9, MVAC, EMS Joint Powers, HRA, Multi-County HRA, Region 9, Le Sueur County 
Aging and Transit, MV River Watershed Committee, Ney Foundation, Parks, Le Sueur – 
Scott Joint Drainage Authority, Le Sueur – Rice Joint Drainage Authority, Le Sueur – 
Blue Earth Joint Drainage Authority, Public Health Emergency Preparedness Advisory 
Committee, Public Health Advisory Committee, LCDS Inc., German – Jefferson Sewer 
District, Regional Radio Board, GBERBA, Middle MN River Watershed, SHIP 
(Statewide Health Improvement Program), Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Committee, 
Safety Committee, Benefit Committee, Veterans Services Drivers and any other newly 
created committees recognized by the County Board in the year 2017.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 60 / 95



On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved, the 
following resolution was adopted:

BE IT RESOLVED: that all members of the County Board, the Human Services 
Director, the County Engineer / Administrator, and the VSO are hereby 
designated as Association of Minnesota Delegates for Le Sueur County in 2017.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that all officials and their delegates are hereby
authorized to attend all meetings called by their respective associations, regional 
and national, including regular meetings called during the year 2017, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that all out-of-state meetings must be 
requested in person by the Department Head before the County Board.

On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
established the 2017 annual base salary of the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners 
to be $28,933.70 plus cafeteria benefits as negotiated by the Union Contracts.

On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
adopted the following resolution setting the 2017 Le Sueur County hours of operation:

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That all employees except for 
public safety and the county highway department employees shall have their 
normal work week at 39.5 hours in 2017. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That the normal hours of operation for 
the County Courthouse and Planning and Zoning Office shall be 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 
p.m. on Mondays thru Thursday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Friday for 2017.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 61 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 62 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 10

5:45 p.m. Jim McMillen (5 min)

RE: Permit Parking - West County Parking Lot

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 63 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 11

5:50 p.m. 2017 Fee Changes Public Hearing (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 64 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 65 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 12

6:00 p.m. 2017 Levy - Budget Public Hearing

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 66 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 67 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 68 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 69 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 70 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 71 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 72 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 73 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 74 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 75 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 76 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 77 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 78 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 79 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 80 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 81 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 82 / 95



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 83 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 13

6:15 p.m. Approve 2017 Levy

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 84 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 14

6:20 p.m. Approve 2017 Budget

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 85 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 15

6:30 p.m. Al Christensen (15 min)

2016 Tri County Update

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 86 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 16

6:45 p.m. Amy Beatty, Environmental Programs Specialist

2017 Recycling Facility Agreement Between Le Sueur County and City of Le Center

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 87 / 95



  ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
Mailing Address: 88 South Park Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057
Physical Address: 515 South Maple Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057
Direct Dial: 507-357-8538   Fax: 507-357-8541
Email: environmentalservices@co.le-sueur.mn.us
County Website: www.co.le-sueur.mn.us 

Date: Monday, December 19, 2016

To: Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

From: Amy Beatty, Le Sueur County Environmental Programs Specialist

RE: 2017 Le Sueur County and City of Le Center Recycling Agreement

Since 2001, the City of Le Center has operated a recycling facility open to all county residents.  
The county has funded the recycling facility with SCORE1 funding.

Change to the 2017 agreement:
1. The term of the agreement – January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017.
2. Increase request of $400.00 per month to operate the facility.  In 2016, it was $1950.00 

per month.  For 2017, requesting $2350.00 per month.

If you have further questions or comments regarding this agreement, please contact me at 507-
357-8203.

1 In 1989, the Minnesota Legislature adopted comprehensive waste reduction and recycling legislation 
based on the recommendations of the Governor's Select Committee on Recycling and the Environment. 
SCORE is part of Minnesota’s Waste Management Act and provides counties with a funding source to 
develop waste reduction, recycling and solid waste management programs. Ambitious goals for 
recycling and waste reduction were set for Minnesota counties and have typically been met, if not 
exceeded.

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 88 / 95

mailto:environmentalservices@co.le-sueur.mn.us
http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us


RECYCLING SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN CITY OF LE CENTER AND LE SUEUR COUNTY

THIS AGREEMENT is between the City of Le Center and Le Sueur County, through their 
respective City Council and Board of Commissioners, (hereinafter singly referred to as “Party” or jointly 
referred to as “Parties”).  

WHEREAS, Le Sueur County desires to create a mechanism whereby residents of the county 
may use a county-wide recycling facility; and

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there is a benefit derived from increasing the availability for 
recycling by the City of Le Center operating a county-wide recycling facility; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the City of Le 
Center and Le Sueur County hereby agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE

This Agreement is to provide recycling and waste reduction services to the residents of Le Sueur 
County.  The City of Le Center has agreed to receive the recyclable materials brought to the 
recycling center located at the city garage, 112 S. Lexington Avenue, Le Center, by any resident 
of Le Sueur County.

2. TERM

This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2017, and terminate on December 31, 2017, 
unless terminated earlier as provided herein. 

3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

The City agrees to receive recyclable materials at its recycling drop site at 112 S. Lexington 
Avenue, Le Center.  The City has entered into a contract with a waste management company to 
provide recycling service.  In this contract, the company will provide containers and will remove 
the recyclable materials on a set schedule.  These materials will be transported to recycling 
facility that meets the requirements under state statutes and rules, county ordinances and solid 
waste management plan, and city ordinances.  

The City of Le Center shall provide, at its own expense, such machinery and equipment as may 
be necessary to receive these recyclable materials.

4. RECYCLABLE MATERIAL

The following recyclable materials will be received at this recycling drop site at no charge to 
residents of Le Sueur County: 

a. Corrugated Cardboard.  These are corrugated cardboard materials used primarily for 
packaging.  Materials to be accepted must be 100% true corrugated, not coated with wax, 
plastics, or food contaminants or contain no chipboard.  

b. Aluminum, Tin/Steel, and Bi-Metal Food and Beverage Cans.  These are containers 
fabricated primarily of aluminum, bi-metal, and tin-plated steel and commonly used for 
beverages and canned food products.  Cans shall be rinsed and be reasonably clean.  The 
following types of metals shall not be accepted aerosol cans, sheet metal, or scrap metal.  

c. Plastics, Numbers 1 through 7.  Plastic containers must have a neck or pourable content.  
Containers shall be rinsed with all caps and lids removed.  The following items shall not be 
accepted margarine tubs, ice cream buckets, food trays, and 5 gallon plastic pails.  

d. Glass Food and Beverage Containers.  Clear, green, blue, and amber glass.  These shall 
include containers fabricated of glass and used for packaging and bottling of various foods 
and beverages.  Containers shall be rinsed with the caps removed.  The following types of 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 89 / 95



2

glass shall not be accepted window glass, mirrors, light bulbs, ceramics, and glass jars or 
bottles that contained hazardous materials.  

e. Mixed Paper.  This included newspaper, magazines, catalogs, direct mail advertisements, 
brochures, booklets, office paper, hard and soft cover books, phone books, manila office 
folders, computer paper, envelopes, letters, and boxboard (cookie, cake, cereal, and chip 
boxes).  The following items shall not be accepted beer/pop carrying cases, egg cartons, milk 
cartons, frozen food boxes, foil, plastic wrap, and carbon paper.  

It is understood that recyclable materials will be accepted “commingled.”  Commingled recyclable 
materials shall be aluminum, bi-metal, steel/tin food and beverage containers, glass food and 
beverage containers, and numbers 1 through 7 plastic containers received together and handled 
as one commodity.  

Recycled materials may be added to or deleted from the list by written request of the parties or as 
required by law.

5. FACILITY OPERATIONS

a. Hours for operation of the recycling drop site are as follows: Each Saturday from 7:00 am to 
12:00 pm.  On the event a state or federal holiday falls on a Saturday, the recycling drop site 
is not required to be open to the public.

b. The City of Le Center agrees to have at least one employee on site at all times during 
operational hours to assist county residents with recycling questions and sorting of 
recyclables.

6. PAYMENT

Le Sueur County shall pay the City of Le Center in the amount of $2,350.00 per month for the 
term of the agreement.  This payment will cover the costs for labor, recycling services, insurance, 
and miscellaneous costs.  

7. PERMITS AND LICENSES

The City of Le Center shall be responsible for all applicable state and county permits and licenses 
required to operate the facility.  

8. RECORDS

Each Party shall maintain financial and other records and accounts in accordance with 
requirements of the State of Minnesota.  Each Party shall maintain strict accountability of all funds 
and maintain records of all receipts and disbursements.  

9. AUDIT/ACCESS TO FACILITY

Each Party shall allow the other Party and the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 
16C.05, subdivision 5, including the Legislative Auditor or the State Auditor, access to its records 
at reasonable hours, including all books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and 
practices relevant to the subject matter of this Agreement, for purposes of audit.  

8. COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE LAW

In performing the provisions of this Agreement, each Party agrees to comply with all applicable 
federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 90 / 95



3

9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

No person shall illegally, on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, sex, marital status, public 
assistance status, sexual preference, handicap, age or national origin, be excluded from full 
employment rights in, participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to 
unlawful discrimination under any program, service or activity hereunder.

10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

It is understood and agreed that this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties 
and that this Agreement supersedes all oral and written agreements and negotiations between 
the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.

11. AMENDMENTS

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any amendments, alterations, variations, 
modifications, or waivers of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have been reduced to 
writing and duly signed by each Party.

12. TERMINATION

Either Party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, by providing ninety (90) days’ 
written notice to other Party.  Termination shall not act to discharge any liability incurred by any 
Party before the effective date of termination, including payments or credits due.  Such liability 
shall continue until appropriately discharged by law or agreement.  

13. CONTACTS

The individuals designated as contact persons for this agreement for each party shall be:

Chris Collins
City of Le Center
10 West Tyrone Street
Le Center, MN 56057
Ph: 507-357-4450
Email: collinschrisl@yahoo.com 

Amy Beatty
Le Sueur County Environmental Services
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
Ph: 507-357-8203
Email: abeatty@co.le-sueur.mn.us

14. LIABILITY/INDEMNIFICATION AMONG THE PARTIES

a. General Indemnification.  The Parties agree that each Party will be responsible for its 
own acts and the results thereof and shall not be responsible for the acts of the other 
Party and the results thereof.  Each Party therefore agrees that it will assume liability for 
itself, its agents, employees, or contractors for any injury to persons or property resulting 
in any manner from the conduct of its own operations, and operations of its agents, 
employees or contractors.  Each Party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
other Party for all liability, obligations, claims, loss and expense, including reasonable 
attorneys and other professional fees, resulting from its acts or the acts of its agents, 
employees or contractors.

b. Indemnification for Benefit of Parties.  The indemnification provisions of this Section 14 
are for the benefit of the Parties only and shall not establish, of themselves, any liability to 
third parties.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to waive or limit the provisions of 
Minn. Stat. Chap. 466, or any other law, legislative or judicial, which limits governmental 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 91 / 95

mailto:collinschrisl@yahoo.com
mailto:abeatty@co.le-sueur.mn.us


4

liability.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have hereunto set their hands on the date written 
as follows:  

CITY OF LE CENTER

Mayor, City of Le Center

Date

Approved as to form:

City of Le Center Attorney’s Office

Date

COUNTY OF LE SUEUR

Chair, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

Date

Approved as to form:

Le Sueur County Attorney’s Office

Date

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 92 / 95



City of Le Center Recycling Facility

Year Co-Mingled (tons) Paper/Cardboard (tons) Cost Per Month Yearly Cost
2001 53.785 126.57 $ 1,000.00 $ 7,000.00 1st year of county-wide operation
2002 51.4 150.01 $ 1,033.00 $ 12,396.00
2003 58.47 153.89 $ 1,056.00 $ 12,672.00
2004 62.67 168.18 $ 1,073.00 $ 12,876.00
2005 58.95 162.3 $ 1,110.56 $ 13,326.72
2006 69.44 160.31 $ 1,149.43 $ 13,793.16
2007 75.82 163.48 $ 1,500.00 $ 18,000.00
2008 77.19 153.12 $ 1,564.50 $ 18,774.00
2009 80.88 137.08 $ 1,581.71 $ 18,980.52
2010 84.42 141.83 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2011 78.92 132.93 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2012 86.28 139.32 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2013 90.38 137.77 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2014 97.64 128.88 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2015 103.32 143.52 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00
2016 $ 1,950.00 $ 23,400.00

Total 1129.565 2199.19 $ 291,618.40

*Will receive the 2016 recycling tonnages when the city submits its next license application (May 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018) .

Monthly payment adjusted annually by an amount equal to the percentage increase from the previous 12 month period by the Consumer Price Index.
In 2006, the city asked for the 2007 monthly payment to be $1500 + Consumer Price Index increase to cover the costs to operate.  

The City of Le Center is responsible for all applicable permits and insurance.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 93 / 95



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 20, 2016

Board Meeting

Item 17

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 94 / 95



Future Meetings
December 2016 – January 2017

December 20, 2016 Board Meeting, 4:30 p.m.
*2017 User Fees Public Hearing, 5:50 p.m.
*2017 Budget/Levy Public Hearing, 6:00 p.m.

December 26, 2016 Offices Closed – Christmas Holiday

December 27, 2016 No Board Meeting

January 2, 2017 Offices Closed - New Year’s Holiday

January 3, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*2017 Board Reorganization

January 10, 2017 No Board Meeting

January 12, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

January 16, 2017 Offices Closed – Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

January 17, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Public Hearing, West Jefferson project, 10:00 a.m.
*Public Hearing, P&Z Committee changes , 11:00 a.m.

January 19, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

January 24, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

January 31, 2017 No Board Meeting

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/20/2016 Page 95 / 95


